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CHAIR PONTANILLA: .. . (gavel) . .. Good morning, Members. Today is
March 22, 2000 .. .2007. The time is 9:05. The Budget and Finance
Committee meeting is now convened. At this time, the Chair would like
to recognize and well-rested Members of the Council, we do have Member
Mateo, Member Anderson, Member Baisa, Member Medeiros, Member
Molina, and our Chairman, Member Hokama, and Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Good morning.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning. And Member Johnson will be joining
us shortly. We have this morning the really ... very privileged to have our
Mayor here this morning. But before I introduce her I just want to
introduce the members of the Administration that is with our Mayor. Our
Finance Director, Kalbert Young; as well as our Budget Director,
Frederick Pablo; and for our Council staff we do have Lance Taguchi, as
well as Gayle Revels, our Legislative Analysts; and our Committee
Secretary, Clarita Balala.
Good morning, Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Good morning.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: At this time the Chair would like to call for public
testimony, and if anyone that's signed up for public testimony, you do
have three minutes to provide testimony with one minute to conclude.
Before we do that though, if I can remind the Members, as well as the
audience in the gallery to turn off your pagers or put it on the silent mode,
as well as your cell phones - silent mode or turn it off.
Clarita, anyone signed up?
MS. BALALA: There should be ...
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Just one?
MS. BALALA: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. At this time, the Chair would like to call on John
Blumer-Buell. Good morning, John, for being here early this morning,
and if you could introduce yourself and the organization that you
represent.

... BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: Yes, and good morning, Council Members, and Mayor
Tavares, aloha.
MS. TAVARES: Good morning.
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: My name is John Blumer-Buell and I'm testifying as an
individual, except for the issue of dialysis. For dialysis, I am testifying for
Hui Laulima, which is a support group in Hana. I submitted a lot of
information for you and I'm going to try to be brief, but I'd like to say just
briefly that I watch a lot of your meetings on Akaku and I like the way the
Council's working together picking up the pace of the work they're doing
and the fact that we are working together with our Mayor. I mean that's
really ... you're off to a good start and I appreciate that.
And since we're into Budget I would like everyone to acknowledge that
this Council I believe is a full-time body and I believe they should be
compensated as full-time employees. And I don't know what the fair pay
is but I think the other day I read something in the, in the . . . from
somebody on the Salary Commission that was taking a shot at our
Legislative body and I thought that was just political and unfair. You are
full-time and let's find a fairer compensation. I think that's, that's only
fair, and you know, Gladys is doing an extraordinary job. She's at every
GP AC meeting. That's, that's double time.
So anyway, under my testimony you have all this information and I'm
only going to deal with Items 1, 2, and 10. The first one is ... and this is
from last year because nothing was done and they're all still really
important.
Number 1, I just one to say that the Mayor and the Council, and this would
be Mayor Arakawa, have not done the requested baseline studies of
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different property tax scenarios, acquisition-based assessments versus
market value assessments, on which to base decisions. I hope you spend
more time on your income side analyzing that this year than just
expenditure. And when I hear Chair Hokama talk about the 300,000 it
sounds like unfunded retirement and health benefits ... 300 million, pardon
me, that. . .that's a matter of real concern when I hear that. I was as
shocked as anybody. But I do ask you to look into a fair taxation system.
It's worth. . .I mean I've been a member of the Committee for More
Equitable Taxation supporting them for nearly 20 years and I would like to
say that former Mayor Hannibal Tavares did advocate a acquisition-based
tax assessment system in a financially much different time. I will
acknowledge that.
The second issue is the last handout in your packet. It's regarding the
Hana Landfill. This is a letter that I wrote to the County Public Works
Department in 2004. They never answered it. Charlie Jencks told the
Hana Community Association that the Hana Landfill would stop at grade.
So we're about 20 feet over grade right now. I think it needs to be closed.
We need to have a satellite dump with really good recycling.
And the other issue that goes along with this is we've been filling the
Hana Landfill with an illegal mining operation in Kaeleku.
MR. TAGUCHI: Three minutes.
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: The County has hundreds of thousands of yards taken
from up the mountain and they've ... theyare spreading miconia seed all
over East Maui as part of the Public Works program while the ... while
we're, we're funding the Maui Invasive Species Committee, which I
support.
Last issue is ... and I'm speaking on behalf ofHui Laulima on this. The ...
we are requesting that we be ... that we be given a grant for the old County
house that Dr. Howell stayed in for a permanent dialysis center. We
would like to have a Steve Moser Memorial Dialysis Center in Hana.
Now we've been working on this for years. There's really good
documentation in here. There's community support - 300 community
signatures in support and the reason we're, we're .. .I'm here with you
today is that Mayor Arakawa who did not follow-up on this did say in one
letter to us, please know that I am supportive of your efforts and are
committed to working with the community to identify the County of Maui
property site for the dialysis center--
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MR. TAGUCHI: Four minutes.
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: --as long does . . . as long as the funding for the
equipment and operations is secured. Then once the site is identified the
Maui County Council will have to approve this request. So that's why I'm
here. We're requesting this. This is on a free month-to-month lease with
an organization that is not. .. has no ... will not take community input. So
we want to get this back in the community's hands. Yesterday, Bill
Medeiros and I both heard that we may have a room for a temporary site
for dialysis. Fantastic! But we want a long-term, permanent center. So
we ask you to look at this, and thanks, Joe, for letting me go on a little bit.
Mahalo.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, John.
Mr. Blumer-Buell? Mr. Medeiros.

Members, any questions for

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Chair. John, thank you for being
out here early this morning, and before I ask my questions, I want to thank
you for your service to the County and the people of Maui on the GP AC.
Because I know that's quite a commitment coming out from Hana because
all the meetings are on this side of the island. So thank you for your work
in the GP AC. On the dialysis question and the facility that you cited, that
facility is a County or a State facility right now?
We dug up the
MR. BLUMER-BUELL:
That is a County facility.
documentation from a... the County didn't supply it to us which is in the
packet. This was from a CDBG application by the Hana Health Center
and under Leased Property it talks about the 12-acre site from the State of
Hawaii, which is ... which was leased to the community originally and
then taken away from us without any community input. The last sentence
of this says, "In addition, the County of Maui provides a house in Hana,
which the Health Center uses to accommodate a full-time doctor. The
house remains the property of the County of Maui with a month-to-month
agreement for the Health Center's use." Now there's not a full-time
doctor in there and we offer alternatives even helping if they need housing
for a doctor. But it's all very well documented and we feel that's a good
permanent site.
The other. . .the other issue very briefly is that we have a great
organization in Hana called Hui No Ke Ola Pono, Hawaiian Health Care
Systems. Because they have never been allowed to build their permanent
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facility on the Health Center site, which was the Community Plan, they are
using a number of rooms at the Community Center. Now I support that
1,000 percent but it's forcing other groups either out or they can't get
space in the Community Center. So the point is that the fact that we can't
have a dialysis center or Hui No Ke Ola Pono or other groups on the
Health Center site where it was supposed to be is backing up groups that
could use the space at our Community Center.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: John, the ... what you refer to as the Hana
Health Center, which way back used to be the Hana County Hospital site,
then became the Hana Medical Center site, what is the resistance to having
the dialysis facility up at the Hana Health Center which is supposed to be
the medical center for Hana?
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: I, I wish, you know, it's, it's simply that the Board of
Directors and the Executive Director will not meet with the community.
They will not have any dialog with the community, and as you know, the
State gave the lease to the Hana Community Health Center in 1997. We
had a 300-member community group that elected the Board and through a
loophole in the law the membership was done away with. So this
wonderful plan the community had developed, you know, everybody .. .I
supported, there was nobody that didn't, that allowed Hui No Ke Ola Pono
to have their own building. They have public health nurse to have her
own building, Ohana Makamae to have their own building, kupuna
housing, a cafeteria place to talk story, and with a medical facility that
would have shared things like x-ray machines and so forth with doctors on
staff and with Hui No Ke Ola Pono. We have a great young MD that's
Hana-born, Paul Kaiwi, in Hana. People love him and thankfully he's
there serving the local community. So ...
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you, John, and Chair, I'd like to yield
to my colleagues and then maybe come back for. ..
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: How many more questions you have?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I have maybe about two or three more.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yeah, if you could finish up, please.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So that's good to hear about, you
know, the information you have for us as far as dialysis and the Hana
Health Center.
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Turning to the landfill, we just met with the Department yesterday and I
raised the question about the projected service life of the Hana landfill and
we were told it had another 5-10 years to it. And now you're saying it's
above grade and the previous Administration said that they would keep it
at grade level. And where do we stand now on the landfill?
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: Officially, I think we'd have to get a response from
Public Works and I would say that Mr. Jencks and Mr. Harder, who were
in charge of the Solid Waste, did tell us, the community association, that it
would stop at grade and it's now at least 20 feet over grade and getting
taller. I mean it is an eyesore and it's, you know, you stand at the dump
and there's Kauiki Hill. I mean it's really an abomination to have that
there now. My understanding is I made comments regarding an EA where
they wanted to do a horizontal expansion of the dump. My understanding
at this point is that they're not going to do that and so I was ... also raised
the issue of vertical expansion of the dump which is what they've done.
Now I think it's ... we need better recycling out there but I think we really
have to look at relocating a dump site in Hana or having a satellite dump
until it's resolved. I think everyone could agree that we would ... you
would never be able to put a dump there with these current regulations. I
mean this is ... there's fresh water going under the dump into Hana Bay so
who knows what's going on.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay, John. And regarding the real property
tax assessment system, I think most of us became shockingly aware when
we got our recent assessments about where that is going so I'm glad you
raised the subject of that and I think this Council will, will have to look
into it as a benefit to all our residents. But once again, John, thanks for
your service on GP AC and thanks for being here this morning.
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: Thanks and I just wanted to say that I was out for a
meeting last night. That's why I'm here this morning. I know you folks
have a meeting in Hana tonight but I don't know if I'll be back.
CHAIRPONTANILLA: Thank you, John.
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: Thanks.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Molina.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
Mr. Blumer-Buell and thank you--

Good mormng,

MR. BLUMER-BUELL: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --for those very kind words pnor to your
testimony on the Budget this morning.
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: I meant it.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: It's much appreciated. Just one quick question
regarding the cesspool at Helene Hall - can you just briefly elaborate just,
you know, what is the specific problem? Is it more a pumping issue?
Does the cesspool have to be constantly pumped? Is that part of the
problem?
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: I'll get. . .I'll tell you what I know and then defer to the
Public Works people for sure. Over the years we've had .. .I mean it was
originally ... Bill would probably know this because he was our Public
Works guy in Hana ... what? .. 30 years ago. There was a cesspool there
and the cesspool was ... because of Tutu's it got pretty regularly backed
up. I mean there was a grease problem and so forth and so there is .. .it's
been backed up over the years. They've been pumping it. At one time
they came in and injected some sort of acid all over the whole area to kind
of melt the grease or something. But I'd suggested over the years that,
you know, why don't you just put a permanent cistern and then just pump
it because we know that it's ... the effluent is ending up in Hana Bay. I
mean the cesspool is only less than 100 feet from the water.
So to take a proactive thing we discussed a low-tech waste treatment
system around all of Hana Bay even 20 years ago. The idea would have
been to have, you know, bulk or maybe a 4-inch pipe and have the ... all
the effluent end up down at the Hana Landfill where we were talking
about doing water heights and so forth and actually treating the effluent
and making it recyclable and this wasn't. .. this was not my idea. We had
some experts come in . . . the community association brought in some
people to address this and it's unfortunate. It really should .. .I would urge
you to put that in your plan. It's one of the, you know, we have the Hana
Kai Hotel. It's a legal hotel on Hana Bay but they have a... they have a
injection system for their well, and you know, when Doctor. .. John Min
did tests for the Sea Ranch Cottages back in the 1980's they found high
levels of cholera form bacteria even then at that end of the Hana Bay. So
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you've got, you've got the whole cess ... the whole bay is cesspools even
now, and you know, you know, to be honest but graphic about it there's
people that do night diving that have reported seeing toilet paper coming
into the bay from lava tubes from the subdivision up above the bay and
that's, that's the way the geology is. So, you know, it's really ... that
really .. .I really encourage you to do that. .. that plan-COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you for that.
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: --and keep between Hana Bay and the dump. Hana
Bay's the sewage and the dump. Hana Bay's really a risk I think, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you for that information.
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: Yeah, thanks.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:
Chairman.

We'll definitely look into that.

CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Member Molina.
questions? Member Baisa.

Thank you,

Members, anymore

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Good morning, Mr. Buell. Thank you very much
for being here. I know we both had a late night last night at GP AC.
You're such a loyal member and he attends every meeting and represents
Hana really, really well. So thank you for your diligence in community
service and thank you for your kind remarks. I think all of the Council
Members try very hard to perform the right service for our constituents
and take our jobs very seriously.
I especially was interested in your comments about the dialysis facility in
Hana because I'm very concerned about the increase in dialysis patients.
You know, having worked with the transportation aspect of it I saw the
numbers rise from a couple of patients to hundreds and hundreds of
patients and that continues to increase on a regular basis-MR. BLUMER-BUELL: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: --as more of our citizens develop kidney disease
and then are being able to stay alive because of dialysis. So it's a
lifesaving thing and whatever we can do to try to make sure that the Hana
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people have dialysis services I think we should support. So I'm really
glad about your testimony.
The other thing that I share your concern about, and it's already been
mentioned, is our property tax system. I was concerned about it for many,
many years but it has finally come home. And now that it has I am more
than concerned about it and I will be paying close attention to those
discussions. Thank you.
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: There's, there's a lot of good people in the community
that would work on a subcommittee. Our current Mayor advocated it
might be appropriate to do some reform through an ordinance. And
frankly, I'd rather see it happen through an ordinance than a Charter
amendment where it's really worked out and all I've been asking for for a
long time, almost a decade, is just to do the scenarios where you get. . .
where you have your baseline information on acquisition-based
assessments and then on the other side you have your market value
assessments. Once you have that baseline you can start playing with the
rates and you'll know what you're going to get. I know Mr. Young can do
it.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: So, Mr. Buell, essentially you're saying that you
support the COMET proposal?
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: Urn ...
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: With .. .let's put it this way ... the concept, maybe
not all the details.
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: Absolutely. Yeah and they're, you know, and they're,
they, they have done more baseline information studying this than I think
the County has and so we really need to work together. I'm here and
you're here. We're all here to solve problems, not to ... I'm not, you
know, we're here to solve problems and we'd like to solve that one. I
think there may be ... we may be able to have more equitable taxation and,
and have plenty of money and not have it be an overburden on people that
are. . .that happen to have their taxes just, just jump through the roof
which has happened.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you very much. Your reasonable approach
to problem solving is very welcome. Thank you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Ms. Baisa. Members, anymore questions?
Member Anderson, followed by Member Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. John, thanks so much
for your being here and bringing us all this information. 1 notice that the
letter you've given us ... the cover letter is, is the letter you gave us last
year, too.
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: Nothing was done so 1 just crossed out the 2007 put in
2008 so ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: 1 think that's very efficient of you and 1
thank you for that because consistency is good. When we know that these
requests have been made time and time again, sooner or later people will
hear you. 1 have just a couple of questions 'cause you've really
well-documented all of this.
The former doctor's home here, who is actually in it right now and what
are they using it for?
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: Because the Health Center will not talk with anybody
from the community officially 1 can't say, but 1 take .. .I often take my
wife, who's a teacher at Hana School, I'll drive her to school if 1 have
things to do that day, more often than not there's no cars. Nobody's
staying there. 1 drive by there at night. Oftentimes there's nobody staying
there so Hui .. .if, if there's .. .if we get a new full-time doctor, Hui
Laulima has offered to help find a house for a full-time doctor. This
facility which is a large house and a small house and a garage is big
enough to accommodate a whole medical team. 1 mean I, 1 would frankly
like to see Hui No Ke Ola Pono have this as their center and Dr. Kaiwi has
offered support in terms of dialysis overseeing the patients. So-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So the County ...
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: --I think everybody would rather see it on the 12 acres.
That's what the community envisioned.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so as far as you know, the County still
has a month-to-month agreement with the Hana Health Center for this
house?
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay.
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: And we, we were the ones that found that out. We
never really got that back from the Arakawa Administration.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Ms. Anderson,-MR. BLUMER-BUELL: I found it in a CDBG grant application.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: --anymore questions for the testifier?
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yes, I do. The landfill - the picture you've
given us here is I'm assuming not the landfill but where they're taking the
cinders from.
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: That's the mining operation mauka of the Hana Ag
Park in Kaeleku which is above the Hana Airport.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: In, in ... are more people than the County
utilizing this mining operation?
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: Absolutely. The County, you know, the Public Works
people out there, the community members can go up and get cinders and
so they're not charging so that's, you know, that's, you know, that's nice
on one hand but it's not. .. people are using it for fill for driveways. It's
not very good for that, but you know, there's never been an environmental
assessment or EIS done for that. They've mined probably, you know, a
million yards or millions of yards which there's a financial obligation to
the State, which includes OHA, and not a penny has been paid, and you
know, the biggest problem ... one of the big problems is it's creating some
flooding in Kaeleku sometimes. And you know, the County's been
spreading miconia seed all over East Maui with this cinder and it's in the
probably the most heavily infested miconia ever in East Maui. This is not
even slightly an exaggeration and, and I was the first person that pointed
out to Maui Invasive Species at their first meeting in Hana. I used to do a
lot of landscaping. I had gotten cinder from Howard Cooper. I had
miconia coming up in landscape where I'd filled more than ten years after
I put it down. So it's, you know, it's, it's a problem.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I know you brought this up last year and,
and when you say the County is spreading the miconia, this is not a
County mining operation is it?
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: It is.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: It is?
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: Those are County machines. You know, if you could
take the time at some point, particularly Mr. Victorino and Mr. Medeiros
who are Public Works, I mean I, I think our .. .I asked for a financial
analysis of this. I think our whole Public Works operation in Hana is
based upon mining and moving the cinder around. And, and ...
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Mr. Blumer-Buell, thank you. I think you answered the
Member's question in regards to the-MR. BLUMER-BUELL: Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: --County taking out the material from that particular
landfill.
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Anymore questions, Ms. Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: No, thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Member Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you. My, my question was,
was just responded to.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: My question also was responded to.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Anymore questions for the testifier?
Again, John, thank you for being here this morning.
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: I was at a meeting out here last night. I didn't drive
over for this.
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Oh, yeah. You told me that was why.
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: I will, I will see you tonight in Hana. So thanks.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
back.

So I'll probably see you tonight so have a safe trip

.. .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, short recess, please.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. We'll have a short recess at the call of the
Chair. .. , (gavel) . ..

RECESS:

9:33 a.m.

RECONVENE:

9:33 a.m.

CHAIR PONT ANILLA: .. , (gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee is
now reconvened. Before we go any further is there anyone else in the
public that want to do public testimony at this time that hasn't signed up
prior to the meeting? If not, if there's no objection, the Chair would like
to close public testimony.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you very much. Members, good morning again.
The Committee's in receipt of the Fiscal Year 2008 Budget as proposed by
our Mayor here. As all of you are aware we are now tasked with
reviewing the proposal and as stated in our County Charter the Council
shall pass the Budget on or before the 31 st day of May of the fiscal year
currently ending. If we .. .if we fail to do so, the Budget submitted by the
Mayor shall be deemed enacted as the Budget for the ensuing fiscal year.
All of you have received a schedule of the Committee meetings through
May 31 st. I know everyone here is full of energy to start the process.
I had the first item up, you know, for. .. as Mayor Tavares, but we do have
a special guest here this morning joining us, and I'd like to introduce to
the Members, Economist Paul Brewbaker. We will receive an economic
outlook from Mr. Brewbaker followed by a question and answer period.
And Members I will allow one question from each Member so that
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everyone has a turn to ask Mr. Brewbaker with a question and along with
that with a follow-up question if needed. So at this time I'd like to call on
Mr. Brewbaker.

(Note: Short pause.)
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: We want to make you feel comfortable. Thank you,
Mr. Brewbaker, for being here this morning. So whenever you're ready-MR. BREWBAKER: Thank you. I was ...
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: --to provide us some information.
MR. BREWBAKER: I was waiting for these guys to speak so I can hear what's
gomg on.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No. We want to hear you first. Okay, Mr. Brewbaker.
... (laughter) . .. So I don't get anything wrong. ..,
(laughter). .. But thank you for the invitation to spend some time with
you today and I've been cruising around Maui for a couple days, which is
amaze, you know, it's amazing what you can hear in 48 hours that helps
flush out what you're seeing when you're sitting in Honolulu looking at
the data as I do most of the time. And I must say that I'm reassured that
there are certain aspects of the local economy that seems to be in pretty
good shape all things considered. But I think it's important for someone
thinking about the outlook to recognize where the risks are and how that
might shape your approach to fiscal policy making and economic policy
making in general. So let me try to frame some of those issues in the
context of both the ... (change tape, start IE) . .. backdrop, as well as
what I'm finding ... hearing about on Maui and then seeing in the data.

MR. BREWBAKER:

First of all, in terms of the sort of the national financial and macroeconomic backdrop there's an important decision yesterday by the Federal
Reserves over Market Committee as you've almost certainly heard. And
what was important about the decision was not so much that they didn't
change their target interest rate but that they articulated language that was
largely perceived as reassuring to the market and enunciated a. . .a
trajectory for the national economy in terms of their expectations, their
forecast, as well as their anticipated monetary policy posture that looks
like a pretty smooth path. Three percent GDP growth, low inflation,
they're waiting for confirmation of a little bit of reduction in the inflation
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numbers that they look at and at the point they feel reassured by that it is
the market's expectation that the overnight target for interest rates will be
lowered over the course of the remainder. .. maybe the second half of this
year and into the first part of next year. And even today this is sort of a
little trivial thing but for me it was really exciting to wake up this morning
and find that the yield on the two-year treasury note was lower than the
yield on the ten-year treasury note, which has been the first time in about a
year or more that that's been true. So, basically, as this expectation of
lower short-term rates creeps out across the current structure of interest
rates things will realign. As you know, they've been kind of inverted.
They've been a little bit upside down of late. So for the national economy
it's all good.
Clearly, there's a housing correction underway and there's a lot of
discussion about aspects related to that. The sub-prime lending issue has
been kind of hot for the last couple weeks maybe. But I do think that this
general concept of an economy on a pretty smooth track is one you can
pretty much bet on.
The problem for Hawaii, and then I think Maui as kind of a... really a
pacesetter for the Hawaii economy the last decade or so, is that we just
went through a period of above national average performance and where
we ended up last year is kind of with a... we sort of hit the wall and, and
we ended up with mostly friction burn as I like to say. We ran out of
labor, we ran out of houses, we ran out of lanes, you know, we ran out of
hotel rooms, and so the energy that the local economy was generating as I
say in a kind of above average, above national average performance was
mostly turning into inflation the last couple years. And indeed last year
we had an inflation rate more than twice the national average. We just
can't, you know, at a 2 percent unemployment rate or less on Maui you
just can't sustain the growth. You don't have the resources and things like
home prices, which have moved upward as has been the case in a lot of
parts of the country, have sort of changed the dynamic. Lower home
prices were actually supporting growth five or six years ago because
believe it or not Hawaii was kind of cheap from a housing prospective
compared to say a lot of California. That's obviously changed.
So from this point forward the odds are the economy locally is probably
going to be performing below the national average. Now, I don't think we
face structural issues like a lot of the upper Midwest, and you know, parts
of the country that are struggling because of their dependence on
automobile manufacturing, for example. But at the same time, the things
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we have been dependent on and customarily tend to be depended on, a
comparatively narrow set of economic options, are the very parts of the
economy that we have to keep an eye on because the lift that they were
providing the last couple years probably isn't going to be there for the next
three, four, five. And in particular, we've used up a lot of the energy that
was being generated by housing, broadly speaking both in terms of
residential investment and in terms of construction at home building per
se, and we've begun to run out of the ability for tourism to sustain the lift
that it's historically provided. Although I will say quickly that Maui is
probably a destination where that's not as much of a problem, in particular
the constraint in terms of visitor capacity, as it would be the case say in
Waikiki where there's a law, 30 years old, that says there shall be no more
than this many hotel rooms. So, you know, in, in one sense maybe Maui
doesn't face quite the same tourism constraint that the State as a whole,
but again predominantly because of the large share comprising Oahu's
destinations in that performance of the total.
So let me get into the detail a little bit on that. Somebody commented in
the earlier conversation I was listening in on about the impact of. .. the sort
of the jarring impact of the rise in home prices and what's that and in real
estate valuations generally and how that sort of changed the way things
worked on the island or in the County and sure, you know, going from .. .I
just did the math last night. I was reconstructing some data sets that I had
lost and if I have the math correct, from 1990 to 2000 the median singlefamily home price on Maui was 270,000. Remember those days? .. ,
(laughter) . .. Because last year it was 690,000 and it's, you know, in the
700,000 neighborhood. It's come off that a little bit. It's probably in the
mid-sixes right now - mid to high sixes. But at a 700,000 median singlefamily home price point, Maui's sort of priced to a benchmark like Orange
County or the San Francisco Bay area or sort of the San Jose, Silicon
Valley complex, which in my mind seems about right. You know, on any
given day maybe it will be higher, maybe it will be lower, but it's a
desirable place to live. It feeds often in the same sort of investor pool, and
of course, increasing mobility and changes in lifestyle and the baby boom
transition and so on. The demographic shifts are all factors that have
played to Maui's appeal as a place to live or a place to move to, a place to
spend a lot of time as a visitor or a part-time resident.
Nonetheless, having gone from under 300,000 to more than double that,
you have to know that at, you know, there's just not that much left in the
near term in terms of upside movement in valuations. And increasingly
over the last year you've seen people begin to shift their portfolios to other
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asset classes as that expectation of higher returns on housing, as we had
for about five years, dissipate ... dissipates and as affordability has eroded.
So for the 300,000 you might have bought a single-family home for at the
beginning of the decade you could get maybe a nice condo - maybe. And,
and that's not going to change. It turns out if, if you go back and look at
25 ... I have data back to 1977 for Maui. I have data for Honolulu back to
the 1950's. And there's some debate about this, but you know, my take on
the data are that home prices on average return sort of in the modern
period by which I mean since 1980 about 4 or 5 percent per year in terms
of annual appreciation.
Now, the problem is it all comes in about four or five years followed by
five, six, or seven years of no appreciation, and we just went from the up
part to the flat part, that we're right on the threshold of going sideways
just as we did in the 1990's for a long time in the 1990's. It's probably not
as long this time but we're sort of punched above that long-term trend and
now we'll have to sort of wait while, you know, the rest of asset valuations
catch up. At the same time, Maui's not the kind of place where people
just cash out and bailout on, right? The bad news is you're trapped in
your house on Maui and people just, you know, how bad is that? So you
see a relative, you know, downward rigidity to those valuations when you
get to a point as we have ... as we did in 2006 or as we did in 1990 or as
we did in 1980 and I'm sure at points in the past for which I don't have
data. That clearly shapes the fiscal outlook for the County given its
dependence on property tax revenues. Now, the property tax base can
grow if development construction is accretive to, you know, the number of
taxable properties, but the valuations on average are unlikely to provide
the lift that they did the last four or five years. And so, and again, that's
just the fiscal reality that it's worth thinking about how, you know, how to
manage through.
I'll just come back briefly to tourism. Although I've indicated the
constraint doesn't seem to be quite as binding, the fact is we haven't really
built that much visitor plant the last, you know, 10 or 15 years. Maui's a
little different because there's been this kind of interesting timeshare or
sort of fractional, from a financial engineering standpoint, kind of a
securitized format that's replacing traditional hotels. I would expect to
continue to see that for reasons we can get into another time. But you
know, given the choice if you're one of the global brands, given the choice
between building a hotel and owning it and waiting for the next 9111 and
building something that you can securitize, you can sort of distribute the
ownership and then manage, I think these, you know, travel and tourism
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entities are always going to go for the latter from this point forward, and in
some places like Maui there's been some of that construction. A place
like Oahu it's been mostly churning, taking existing inventory and
converting it, and of course you have some of that here. But the point is
we haven't built thousands of hotel rooms as we used to in the past and it
seems from a strategic tourism policy standpoint that that's unlikely and
so, you know, you have to reckon with that as well.
Part of the decrease in international travel that we're seemg, which to
some extent. . .I mean is to some extent attributable to the fact that in the
fight for rooms the mainland tourist who stay longer and are sort of
willing to participate in a kind of a spot market as opposed to a forward
market that the Japanese tour wholesalers structure, the mainland tourist
are kind of winning that battle. The hotels are, are increasingly reluctant
to commit rooms forward to the large entities that move travelers out of
Japan and are, are, you know, happy to just keep their options open and
see what hotel room rates will be six months or a year from now when
they might otherwise have contracted those rooms. And so you're getting
a bit of a shift with increasing domestic travel offsetting the decrease in
international travel, and by decrease I mean, you know, 10 percent
decrease last year so we're, you know, for no particular reason. I mean
you can understand if Japan's economy was in bad shape as it was last
decade or if it was the aftermath of 9111 or SARS, but last year it was a
pretty good year for Japan. So this is problematic although, again as I
indicated, not as problematic for Maui as the other destinations in the
State.
And just finally, I don't mean to put too much emphasis on housing but it
is kind of the big dog of construction. It is notable that there's a lot of
non-residential construction in terms of commercial commitments that sort
of lay the, you know, the commit. .. the foundation for construction
activity to continue at a relatively high level for a couple years, and that's
actually true in residential construction as well. Everything the people
have committed thus far will, you know, a lot of it will be built out, and
maybe not all of it will be built out. So there's a certain amount of
momentum that persist for another year or two in terms of construction
activity. But it's those two pieces, tourism and construction, that kind of
move around. Everything else you look at, you know, health and retail,
and you know, most of those things, professional business services, those
things kind of move along steadily over time. And the thing's that the real
moving parts are in the investment side where construction lives and then
on the tourism side and of course for Maui that's really big.
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So bottom line - pretty good outlook but not quite as much energy as
we've had the last couple years and I think what will probably unfold as
increasingly tight constraints on the fiscal prospects for the County as you
move out through the remainder of the decade against which you're going
to have to think about balancing increasing demands for public services.
And then of course the, you know, the payroll component of the delivery
of those services as public workers come to the negotiating table to, to,
you know, to seek wage increases over time. And I'll stop there. That's
probably more than I needed to get into. But ... (laughter) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Brewbaker. Members, any questions?
I'll start from Mr. Victorino. Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO:
Mr. Brewbaker.

Thank you very much.

Thank you,

MR. BREWBAKER: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I think you have given us a good insight in
what we can look forward to. I hope the public sees that we are in a
period of, of flux, you know, and I think that's .. .I've heard you say that a
number of times in some of your other presentations. I, I guess the key
component that I'd ask you about is what the financial institutions and
movements within the financial institutions, how will that affect the
overall picture? Now the reason I ask this question is there's been a lot of
creative mortgage programs put out there by many financial institutions,
not necessarily banks. I'm talking all aspects of mortgage companies,
et cetera. And I think in the very near future from everything I've read
we're going to hit the wall in that area which will mean, if! read correctly,
maybe a bunch of foreclosures coming down the road like we had in the
90's. You know, in the late 80's, early 90's-MR. BREWBAKER: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --when the Japanese economy went south
and everybody was dumping properties.
MR. BREWBAKER: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: But I see it more as a local issue - in fact
more people that have bought because speculation and the anticipation of
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growth in the economy. What is your take in that area? Because I think
it's going to have a profound effect in the overall scheme of things which
sometimes I think people try to sweep under the rug and I don't want to
have it swept under the rug.
MR. BREWBAKER: Clearly credit risk is latent in the eXIstmg, you know,
mortgage universe. It is something a lot of people are paying a lot of
attention to, you know, these days, and in particular in that kind of subprime space where financial innovation was actually quite active. In the
last decade or so, you know, the fash [sic] of mathematics have allowed
lenders to actually push out and provide credit where historically it hadn't
been available to lower income households and, and people that may be,
you know, didn't meet the borrowing criteria that used to be standard. So
in one sense that's a good thing but it has sort of given rise to the risk that
now that the lift of home prices is gone that, you know, now we're going
to find out, you know, how much of that credit was good credit. I think
it's being managed down pretty actively, in fact maybe even aggressively
and the reason is that in the 80' s when we went through the same thing
and the savings and loans were allowed to kind of run the thing out a little
too far, it ended up blowing back on us and was a problem in terms of
delinquencies and defaults and foreclosures. My sense again is that this is
being managed down pretty aggressively. It's not going to be as big a
problem. It tends ... where the big problems are tend to be in markets with
really low housing costs of which we are not one.
So ... but to go to your ... the first part of your question, I think financial
innovation is here to stay. There's a really strong imperative for all of us
... a very competitive imperative for us to deploy innovative instruments
as they are developed and to utilize the innovations that's in things like
secondary markets that allow us to lay risk off and to pool risk and as a
result provide credit where in the past we might not have been able to.
And I'm, I'm sure I know where I work we're going to continue to be
pushing on that pretty, you know, as hard as we can.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO:
Mr. Chair.

Thank you, Mr. Brewbaker.

MR. BREWBAKER: Thanks.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Victorino. Mr. Hokama.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, I, I want Mr. Brewbaker to share some
further insight. I think one of the things that he shared with us this
morning that is critical for us in this juncture of time is whether or not
because of this flatten ... flattening out evaluation, should we as a County
try and capture as much . . . a reasonable amount of increase in cash
revenues now knowing that with this flattening out every year we still
have our increased expenses through collective bargaining and other
factors whereby it's going to impact us knowing we have major projects
obligations coming down the road in the very mid, mid-future. What
would you recommend or suggest regarding how we plan in this next short
term to prepare for the long-term requirements?
MR. BREWBAKER: Yeah. I think I can see where you're going. Your intuition
is appropriate in the sense that for a few years we really didn't have to
worry about this. We came to work everyday, and ho, there's more
revenue and that's true with the counties and it's been true with the State.
I think in particular at the State right now I'm on the Council on Revenues
that does the State's revenue forecast and I go to our meetings and it's like
a different world from the one I'm hearing about at the Legislature where
everybody seems to think there's a lot of money. So it takes a while for
this to sink in and it's good to be getting ahead of it as your intuition
suggests. So one way to think of it is suppose the revenue stream that you
have today was all you had for the next five years. Now, I say that
because in the long run you're good to go. I mean, you know, on average
over the next 20-50 years I think Maui's definitely a place that people are
going to want to be and so it's all good. But the problem with real estate
you just sort of had the big step up and now you kind of go sideways or at
least it's interesting to frame the answer with that assumption.
So there are couple things you can do. One is recognizing that given that
long-term prospects are reasonably good and given that the people who
evaluate those kinds of things like the bond rating agencies are, are
reasonable confident in that and the County's ability to manage its
finances through that, it's not unreasonable to think about longer term
capital spending initiatives that whose benefits exist over time and whose
costs are distributed over time that, you know, might represent what, you
know, what could be a little bit heavier burden in terms of debt service
than has been carried previously. Maybe not - I'm just saying it's
important to think sort of through the cycle, so to speak, and you can't do
that on the operating side of the budget as much as you can, on the capital
side of the budget where you can go to the market borrow and distribute
cost over time.
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But in terms of the operating side of the budget it does ... the assumption
of no increase in revenues forces you to think through your operations in a
different way. You know it gets reasonably predictable that labor cost will
go up, that energy and operational expense in general won't be going
down, and so you know, you kind of have to think out of the box let's say
on the revenue side. Are there ways that we manage public resources that
are sort of not being efficiently priced and allow us an opportunity to say
let's do something from the pricing side let's say in a user-fee format that
actually gets a rational outcome? So I would say, you know, if you're
digging cinder out of the ground that's full of miconia seed, somebody
should be paying for that truckload, you know. They're getting it free and
then just, you know, that kind of thing. And I mean .. .I'm just using that
as an example because I was just hearing somebody talk about that. So
again there's, you know, two ways of thinking about it or smoothing out
and using your ability to borrow to rely on capital spending to smooth out
some of the bumps and provide infrastructure in a rational and meaningful
way. But then also to think about the operational challenges in maybe a
more creative revenue enhancing way that at the same time creates
opportunity for greater efficiency.
I'd give another example. If you think about what eBay has done in
changing the way we think about how things are traded, you know, think
about development entitlement in the same format, or you know, think
about or if you think about what GPS has done, or you know, scanning.
You think about the cart or the crates going in and out of Wal-Mart.
Everyone of them has radio iden ... you know, radio frequency ID. Maybe
traffic flow can be managed using some of this technology. I'm just
saying there, there, you know, when push comes to shove and you're not
going to be provided with the lift that property values were giving you, it's
worth thinking about other ways of revenue that achieve economic
efficiency as you go.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. A follow-up, please, Chairman, and then I'm-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Go ahead, Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --happy to have Mr. Molina take ... be next. You
know, I appreciate what you're sharing, and again, we're trying to forecast
in advance and there's many uncertain factors. And you mentioned, you
know, it could be maybe a four, five year period of flattening out, could be
longer. So, you know, I'm envisioning that in earlier discussions with you
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and other financial people, should we be at least making options for this
County? Let's say, you know, Olympics in Beijing takes off. The world
thinks they're a great now economic super power. They want to flex their
muscle because they own a trillion dollars of United States debt. So like
you say, let's say they make an adjustment in currency, adjust the yuan
versus the U.S. dollar. They have now become very cash rich. So they're
going to do what the Japanese I would think did is expand outside of the
People's Republic and start spending and start traveling.
MR. BREWBAKER: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Is this something we should have our people start
preparing as realistic options because it may again impact real estate
valuation, out of State sales, not. .. out of County sales I should say and
the ability of again us going through another speak [sic] spikes. You
know, instead of a reasonable growth we're going to go back and forth
with those big ups and downs again.
MR. BREWBAKER: Yeah. I think it's, you know, China and emerging markets
generally in Asia in particular for Hawaii represent real opportunities as
well as challenges in terms of the impacts of some of the outcomes. That
we've had a taste of before in terms of Japan's emergence in the late 20th
Century and doubtless we'll see unfold in the 21 st Century. And you
allude to offshore investment, and you know, tourism would be another
channel through which those high growth economies would exert an
impact on ours. At the same time there's going to be ... you'll read in the
newspaper I think today that somebody has a new study that says
pandemic flu could blow up tourism, which okay, there's a big surprise.
So there are both risks and opportunities, and you know, I'd rather have
the latter than the former but they're both out there. And I think it sort of
goes back to another thing I was alluding to in the earlier question or
former question about financing or financial innovation and whatnot.
It's important to build a system of governance, or you know, public
resource management or whatever that's flexible enough to respond, you
know, where opportunity occurs so that it doesn't sort of distort the
outcome and yet is also capable of handling the shocks when they arrive.
Most of the shocks are going to be negative. It's rare you're going to have
something fall out of the sky, you know, and everybody all of a sudden
makes money. Most of the things are sort of the 9111 event. But then the
underlying backdrop is this pattern of growth and, and emerging of
emerging markets, literally, markets emerging elsewhere in the world.
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That will make us even more connected with that global economy than we
are today.
Can you bet on it? Well, maybe not in the timetable that's, you know,
going to payoff. But I would say it's definitely out there as something
worth considering within a period of say 10 or 20 years.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thanks, Paul. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:
Mr. Brewbaker--

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Good morning,

MR. BREWBAKER: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --and thank you for being here. I'm having
flashbacks of being back in college ... (laughter) . .. and I'll try not to
pontificate as the local newspaper is accusing the Council of doing. But
anyway, my question is related more to consumer spending here in Maui
County. Per person how do we compare nationally and how does our
local consumer spending affect our economy here and in terms of is this a
factor for you in making your long-term forecast?
MR. BREWBAKER: This can actually be a short answer because I have no clue
what the answer to your question is. Unfortunately, we don't get really
good consumption or consumer expenditure survey data down, you know,
to the local level. We do know that in per capita income terms for which
we have some better measures that, you know, Maui is up there around the
State average maybe closer. .. my guess is that in the old days the neighbor
islands were always below, Oahu was always above. I don't think that's
true anymore. In fact, there might have been a reversal and just in terms
of real estate valuations, Maui's more valuable than Oahu, you know, per
square foot. So that's probably changed quite a bit. But my anecdotal
feeling is driving, you know, down Dairy Road past Costco and Wal-Mart,
and Borders, and Home Depot is that there's really no difference. Right?
We all go to Ross Dress for Less for the cheap stuff and then we go, you
know, go out to dinner at whatever Hailimaile [sic] so ... or Haliimaile. So
I think it's ... you wouldn't find if you had good data there would be a big
difference in consumption patterns between Maui and the State as a whole
and a lot of the mainland today, and certainly not nearly the kind of

- 25 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
March 22, 2007

profound differences we sort of grew up with, you know, in, in .. .I like to
call it in the days BC, Before Costco, you know .. .(laughter) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Molina. Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Chair. Thank you, Mr. Brewbaker,
for being here. I want to ask because of our national foreign policy, our
involvement in the name of national defense in the Middle East and
possibly Korea and China and Iran, and we're seeing a decrease in Federal
funding that has great impacts on our nonprofits, our social services,
housing, public works infrastructure, what do you see happening in this
way that impacts our State and then our counties?
MR. BREWBAKER: I think this is actually one of the bigger areas of continuing
challenge in terms of fiscal management and, and sort of innovation, or
you know, thinking outside the old boxes. And that would have been true
even had the Federal budget surplus that came out of the 1990's not been
impaired by the political outcomes and, and some of the other fiscal
policies, lets say tax policy that, you know, politically moved with the
pendulum. Because the demographic implications of just the aging on
social security and medicare and medicaid alone were going to create
challenges in the traditional flow of funds from the Federal government to
State and local jurisdictions so it was going to be bad and then it got
worse.
How you confront that is really important and I'll give an example. I
spent some time thinking about the housing ordinance that was adopted
here although I saw drafts of it and it occurs to me that if the community
is ... wants to make a commitment to lets say in this case, workforce
housing or affordable housing or the delivery of social services or health
services as a community, then it really has to confront how it mobilizes
that response. And in the case of housing, it seems like the response is
sort of focused on the incremental, right? It's the new homeowner or
buyer or prospective homeowner or the buyer that bears a disproportionate
share of that cost whereas existing homeowner does not and that's a matter
of design.
But my point here is if you're going to sustain social services, health
services, the various forms of outreach, housing assistance, whatever, as a
County, how you design it is problematic and then the flow of funds that
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used to help you get there - for example, in Federal housing alone, you
know, it's just not going to be there in the future. So that's a real
challenge. I have a couple ideas how you might get through it but we can
leave that for another time. I would just say quickly that don't forget that
given that you don't really have that many handles to work with, you have
the property tax, ... (change tape, start 2A). . . you have to really think
through where you set that. . .those parameters, those tax parameters
because, you know, that's I mean that's all you got.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you, Mr. Brewbaker. Thanks, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Medeiros. Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Good morning, Mr. Brewbaker. Nice to see you
agaIn.
MR. BREWBAKER: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you for being here with me wearing my
new hat. I'm very concerned about the income of the residents of our
County. Many of them, as you know, do not make that median income
that we talk about and I'm very interested in this idea of a living wage and
I'd like your perspective on that.
MR. BREWBAKER: So because I learned the secret handshake when I got my
Ph.D., you know, I'm supposed to say that, you know, there's no such
thing or, or in other words it's important to distinguish the idea of what an
income should be or could be from sort of the cost of living complex of
which shelter in particular has, you know, risen to the top of the heap.
And it was energy a few ... a couple of years ago when we were thinking
about intervening in the gasoline pricing market as a State and it's always
something, you know. In 1990, it was the Price of Paradise was the way
we framed the same conversation we're having today and many of the
same issues were there and in fact that that's ... actually been talking with
Randy Roth about we should just do it again, and you know, change the
dates and republish the books. And ... (chuckles) . ..
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But this point about distinguishing income from living costs is really
important because what happens is if you. . .if you sort of. . .if you make
the argument that one ought to be able to afford something, some package
that includes say housing, or then you know, you mayor may not be. . .
get the outcome you want, but when you're disappointed by the outcome
as I think a lot of people would be today in that cost of living has changed
much faster than incomes have of late. It's not like you could really do
anything about it on the wage or the income side.
And this is, you know, I spent a lot of time when I first came back to
Hawaii actually doing cost of living calculations and that whole Price of
Paradise is semantic. It really became something that bug me. The
Advertiser, this reporter Susan Hoover and I worked together for years on
this back in the 80's, early 90's and they always liked to call it the
Paradise Tax and I always .. .I ended up calling it the Paradise Premium
and this is how I put it, and again, this is BC, Before Costco.
(laughter). .. And my observation was we're all getting screwed, we
can't afford the rent, blah, blah, blah, and we do it willingly in that we
could get on a plane and bailout. What is wrong with us? Well, what
happened of course at that moment in time was somebody recognized that
like Costco or Ross Dress for Less that if they brought a distribution
system that had lower cost retail items to a community like Hawaii's that
had been sort of left on the side, they could make money. And that's why
the 90's were so good because we were all ... that's why we're all driving
around in SUV s because we were saving money on clothes. .., (laughter)
. . . You know, how smart was that now? You know, you want to trade in
your Hummer now. But the point is I don't think you really get there by
focusing on wages, but again, that's you know, I have to say that because
I, you know, learned the secret handshake of economists.
But this principle of sort of, particularly with housing, think about housing
prices and what. .. how you ... how you change the conditions that lead to
prices moving abruptly as they do in Hawaii independently from what you
do about wages or the structure of the labor market or of economic
opportunity for working people and try not to get them too commingled.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you and while I've got the,-MR. BREWBAKER: And we should talk some more about it though.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: --yeah, while I have the genius on the floor what
was the CPI for Maui this year?
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MR. BREWBAKER:

Oh, there is none, right?
Consumer Price Index.

So there's only a Honolulu

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: For, for the State?
MR. BREWBAKER: Because it's an urban index which so far technically Maui

isn't although we all know that's not true but I'm just saying-COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: You haven't gotten in a car lately-MR. BREWBAKER: --with .. .it was about--

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: --or you might. ..
MR. BREWBAKER: --it was 5.9 percent in 2006--

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Five point nine.
MR. BREWBAKER: --and for the nation it was more like three. The current

core inflation rate nationwide that's excluding food and energy is about
2.7 percent and last year Hawaii's was 5.5. So ... although again, in 1999
lets say the national inflation rate was 1 or 2 percent and ours was actually
-0.1. That was that Ross Dress for Less here when we went and bought
the SUv. And so, you know, we tend to go above and below and we've
gone from being above in the late 80's to below in the late 90's to above
today and I'm guessing we'll cycle back down.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Member Baisa. Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: No questions. Thanks.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Member Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:
morning, Mr. Brewbaker.

Chairman, thank you very much.

MR. BREWBAKER: Morning.
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you very much for your words this
morning because that just gave me a big sigh of relief-MR. BREWBAKER: Oh, good.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: --knowing that five months ...
MR. BREWBAKER: I don't usually have that effect. ... (laughter) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: I think you caused it. Five months ago your take
on the Maui County's Residential Workforce Housing that kind of helped
stem this fear of doom and gloom because the policy itself was going to
help erode the economy of Maui and to hear your, your comments on the
strengths of tourism and housing will continue on, that brings a sigh of
relief for, for me in particular. So just wanted to thank you and to let you
know that the process that comments were, were made on is progressing
quite smoothly and quite quickly.
MR. BREWBAKER: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:
sharing ...

So thank you very much for being here and

MR. BREWBAKER: My pleasure and I appreciate the opportunity. I should
probably make sure I'm understood which to say ... by which I mean it
sounds like you're more optimistic than I sound ... than I thought I was
going to lead you to be ... (laughter) . .. so just keep that in mind. I'm
more optimistic than people who are really pessimistic. Put it that way .
. . . (laughter) . .. Okay and I'll leave it at that.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Member Mateo. I do have a question in
regards to, you know, recently we passed a 2 percent tax, not tax, but 2
percent from our real property tax revenues to be utilized for affordable
housing or employee housing in the future.
MR. BREWBAKER: Right.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: I don't know if you read anything about it and if you
did, if you can provide us with some comments in, you know, our decision
to do that to provide more affordable housing to our community?
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MR. BREWBAKER: Sure. This is where, you know, the decisions are made and
you, you can. . .it's important to remember that you always have the
discretion to do things as policymakers and, and sometimes you, you
know, always you need to be responsive to your constituency, sometimes
you need to lead despite maybe the fact that the constituency might not be
there. But as a general rule, again, because I had to learn the secret
handshake so the economist. .. an economist would say be careful about
tying up the revenue side of the budget with rules that drive expenditures.
There's no .. .I mean I'm not saying one shouldn't do it but you have to be
careful about it because it can be kind of a slippery slope although that's I hate that expression because I'm never sure what it means. But a good
example, an analogy would be the State government has, and state
governments throughout the country by the way, this is like the whole
groove thing of State Legislatures, has increasingly pre-committed in tax
credits revenues that they haven't yet seen and you have these really
bizarre conversations now, ooh, Jeff Stone didn't use the credit at Ko
Olina so now we can use it for something else. It's not like he handed
back some money. Okay. The money was never there. It's still not there,
you know.
So, again, I think the focus on the expenditure side appropriately should be
what does the community want us to do with our resources, but when you
start kind of tying up the revenue stream, just make sure, you know, it's,
it's the most efficient way to do it.
Sometimes governments or
policymakers do that because it's important for the government to have a
credible and consistent demonstration of commitment, right? Rather than,
you know, come to the Money Committee every year and beg for money.
That's how we fund the university, for example. But at the same time,
yeah, I just. . .I guess, you know, be careful how you tie things together.
A final comment about housing - don't be afraid to have faith in the
market and I think what jurisdictions have learned over the years and over
the cycles is that it's easy to get sucked in to being a provider of in-kind
interventions. Okay, so we're going to provide the housing lets say when
again under the economist secret handshake the rule is always just provide
the support in cash and have the economic agents make the decision when,
you know, given the choice. The problem with the former approach, the
in kind approach, is that you end up like City and County of Honolulu.
You own apartment buildings in Chinatown. They will never make
money. They will be a permanent drain and inevitably you end up having
to sell them at a discount and some guy goes in and does a condo
conversion. So it's real, you know, it's really hard to design this type of
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in-kind intervention to actually work and if you have a dedicated funding
source, which it can be a good demonstration of public policy intent. You
still face the problem of how you deploy the resources that you've
dedicated. So I'll leave it at that.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Brewbaker. Members ...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: If you would, please, and the Committee indulge me,
one last question. Hearing what you share with us this morning, what is
your advice at this snapshot in time regarding either maintaining the
economy as it is for this County or putting extra effort on the
diversification of our economic engine?
MR. BREWBAKER: I learned the word diversification in third grade at
Maunawili Elementary School in my Social Studies class and which was
like 50 years ago, you know, so and everybody keeps talking about it like
it's something we get to choose to do and my guess is that jurisdictions
aren't sufficiently potent to engineer the economic outcome. Now, a lot of
people say we need to be - I love this expression - we need to be
proactive, not reactive. We're this big. This big compared to what's
going on in the world around us and there's, you know, an obvious reason
for why Maui's outcome is more tourism dependent than other places, for
the same reason that Saudi Arabia is dependent on petroleum exports. It's
just specialization along the lines of comparative advantage that allow you
to achieve a higher standard of living that would have otherwise been the
case had you not done that given the global trading opportunities that
confront us. I understand we could have made the cars ourselves. They
would have been way more expensive, which meant we would have had
fewer of them. I understand we could have done the clothes, but they're
cheaper at Ross Dress for Less. So that's just the way things come out. I
really don't think jurisdictions have nearly the ability to engineer the
outcome that in Hawaii, like I say I learned it in elementary school, and
people are still, I go to the Legislature all the time and people go, oh, we
need to diversify the economy. I even make these pie charts that go look
at the pie chart. When I was in elementary school, it looks like this, now it
looks like that. What is wrong with this picture?
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The Hawaii commerce is actually incredibly diverse. Some of it maybe is
the result of engineering. Again, I kind of doubt that. My guess is there's
nothing wrong per se with being reactive if what that means is you're
looking at where the opportunity is and you're going there's where we're
going to make ourselves better off as a community. So that's kind of my
generic response now. I sort of. . .I'm like anti-diversification in the sense
that ... (laughter). . . I think it's been a big distraction. As a framing
principle I think it's a big distraction and we should just get on with, you
know, look, we can do this, look, there's a container ship. We talked
about this yesterday from, you know, Matson has a container ship that
goes from Long Beach to Hawaii and then to Shanghai. You know what I
mean? The option before was we send our stuff to the mainland and then
to China. So that's got to be cheaper. And there's guys bottling
desalinated water for God's sake and making money out of it. You know
what I mean? Lets just find the things where the opportunity lies and just
ramp that up as much as we can. You know, mitigating there, if it's going
to crush the pier, that's a whole other thing. But let's, you know, be
creatively reactive and be humble about our opportunity for proactive
engmeenng.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Members, let's give
Mr. Brewbaker a hand for that wonderful overview ... (applause) . .. and
Mr. Brewbaker, you know, you made an offer that, you know, another
time that you provide us with some, some more information hopefully can
fix our problems here on Maui County-MR. BREWBAKER: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --so we'll take that invitation. Thank you. Members,
right now it's 10:23. We shall take our morning break at this time and if
we can report back at 10:35. We're in recess .... (gavel) . ..
RECESS:

10:23 a.m.

RECONVENE:

10:38 a.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: .., (gavel). . . Thank you, Members, for that recess.
Members, let me give you some information in regards to this morning's
meeting. We're going to go up to noon. I know we do have a plane to
catch at 3: 00 and there are some Members that's going to be driving in
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into Hana this evening. So the Chair intends to adjourn this meeting at
noon today.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
ITEM NO. 1:

FY 2008 Budget (C.c. No. 07-29)

CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Members, this morning it's my honor to introduce our
Mayor, Charmaine Tavares, who is with us from early this morning, and
the Mayor is going to provide us with an overview of her proposal to this
Council. Mayor.
MAYOR T AV ARES: Thank you, Mr. Chair and Members. It is my pleasure to
be here for the first time through a budget when I'm on another side of the
table. It's a very interesting perspective. But I just had a few opening
comments that I wanted to make because I know you're anxious to get
into the nitty-gritty's of things.
I just wanted to share with you folks that when we worked on this budget,
we're working on a budget that we think meets the needs of our
community. And given that this was the first year of the first term, it was
as you folks realized I'm sure a crunch that we work on the budget from
January 2nd and basically have to be finished in about seven weeks or eight
weeks. So we have tried to put together a budget that reflected our best
efforts at the time and also reflects actually a snapshot in time as far as
revenue projections, expenses, and also forecast, like we heard this
morning from Mr. Brewbaker.
We realize that this document is a dynamic one and it is going to be
subject to change as we go along or we wouldn't have this process.
Actually, if you folks wanted to have an easier time with this, you could
just not take it up and just let it become law, ... (laughter). . . then you
save a whole lot of time on everyone's parts. But that's not your area of
responsibility and we all realize that. So we would like very much to
assure you that my Administration and the Directors of the various
departments and agencies and programs are anxious to work with you
because we do have the same goal of meeting our community needs and
that's what this is all about and I do look forward to our working together
on this budget. And I know that our departments are a little nervous about
coming down, some of them for the first time, so please be kind, . . .
(laughter) . .. and realize that, you know, like I keep saying is we are
genuinely interested in what our future is here and what our community
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needs are and what our people are having to go through in order to
maintain some semblance of a quality of life here in Maui County. So
with that I will end and thank you very much for the opportunity to speak
with you this morning.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Mayor. Members, any quick questions that
you want to ask the Mayor at this time? Seeing none. I'd just like to
thank the Mayor for having three of her Department Heads come forward
the last three days to review the second quarter '07 Budget. They did a
fantastic job in regards to meeting with the Council.
MAYOR TAVARES: Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, today we have the distinct
pleasure to have our Budget Director with us and at this time I'd like to
call on Mr. Fred Pablo to provide us with an overview in regards to Fiscal
Year '08 Budget. Mr. Pablo.
MR. PABLO: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
Council, and good morning.

Thank you, Members of the County

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Good morning.
MR. PABLO: I'm very pleased to be here today. This is a first. .. my first
presentation on the Budget for the Fiscal Year 2008. What I'd like to do
this morning is do an overview of the three documents which we prepared
and provided to the Council about a week ago. For me it doesn't seem
like a week but here we are today. It's the first day of discussions on this
Budget which will continue on for several weeks.
Our main objective, as the Mayor had indicated is for the County
Administration to work with the Council in coming up with a budget
which will fund the various programs of our County government. At last
count there's about 65 programs with 19 departments. Our job is to assure
that these programs are funded so that they can provide the service that is
requested by the communities.
I hope all of you have a handout which I had prepared this morning.
Okay. You could follow it. There's three budget. .. there's three budget
documents which we prepared and submitted last week. There's a
Proposed Budget Ordinance which will probably be the last item for
discussion. There's a Budget Details which will guide you through the
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discussions with each of the departments and there's a Program Budget on
which I will be spending most of my time today. These three documents
total over 1,300 pages. So what I'd like to do is give you a brief overview
on how we can utilize these documents for the budget process.
The first document which I would like to talk about is the Proposed
Budget Ordinance. As many of you know, this is the formal legislative
enactment by the Council. When it becomes adopted, it guides the
Administration through the whole Fiscal Year, which will begin on July 1,
2007 through June 30,2008. This is the document which will give County
officials the authority to incur obligations and to pay expenses. The
Proposed Budget Ordinance consist of various sections. The main portion
is one which will show the amount of revenue estimated for the fiscal
year, the operating budget, or as you sometimes call the appropriations for
the departments and programs, and it also includes the capital
improvement projects. This is the main part of the ordinance. That is
followed by Appendix A, which is the grant revenues which we expect to
receive during the fiscal year, and also Part 2, which is the revolving
funds. That's followed by Appendix B, which are the rates, fees, and
assessments, and this year we have several changes to the rates, fees, and
assessments. They will be in the area of Solid Waste, Wastewater, Water
Fees, and Golf Fees. Included also in the Budget Ordinance is the bond
authorization for funding our capital improvement projects and there'll be
other related ordinance as they come up during these next several weeks.
The Proposed Budget Ordinance and the main part has as stated the
estimated revenue which we estimated at 524 million, appropriations for
the departments and 65 programs for 421 million, and capital
improvement projects of 103 million. So our estimated revenue will equal
the appropriations plus capital improvement projects.
The second major document which we provided a week ago is what we
call the Budget Details. You'll find them in a binder and this contains
information on each of the departments. For each department they'll
contain two parts. One is a department summary which is a comparative
analysis over several years on salaries and wages, the operating expenses,
and the equipment. And these are again, are shown for each program
within each department.
The second part of the Budget Details are the operations expenses and this
is our projections of what the department and programs will need in Fiscal
Year '08 and it will be compared to what they had in Fiscal Year '07.

- 36 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
March 22, 2007

That brings us to the Program Budget on which I will spend most of my
time. And this is the one that looks like this and it totals 650 pages if you
finish reading it from cover to cover. It has a lot of information and I
think it will be helpful if I could just go through each of the sections and
what we were trying to convey to the users of this Program Budget.
As you know, the Program Budget is the most referenced budget
document. We have it posted on the web, we have CDs ready for
distribution, and it has been distributed to libraries throughout Maui. It
has been distributed to schools throughout Maui. It has also been
distributed to our Senators and Representatives in Honolulu.
We call this the Program Budget because although the sections are divided
into the departments, now you will know the Public Works or Water
Supply or Transportation and so forth, those Departments consist of
various programs and each program has a different mission and objective.
And when we fund these programs, we're looking at what we call
Accounts A's, B' s, and C' s. A's are salaries and wages, B' s are the
operating expenses, and C' s are equipment needs for the fiscal year.
Within a Program Budget funds allocated to a specific program must be
spent only for that program, and however, funds within that program may
be spent on personnel, operations, and/or equipment. The Program
Budget is intended to be flexible. It allows the Department Manager, it
allows the Program Manager, to operate in a constantly changing
environment.
When you go through this document, which I said is about 650 pages, the
best way to view it is that it's divided into several sections. The first
section is the introduction which contains the Mayor's message, the
County profile, and an economic outlook as provided by the First
Hawaiian Bank. The second part is the budgetary process, which I'll be
covering today, and it also contains revenue estimates, which my Finance
Department colleague, Kalbert Young, will be covering later. It's also
followed by department summaries and they'll be as I said 19 departments
and within those departments there's a total of 65 different programs.
Those department summaries are followed by capital improvement
projects and these capital improvement projects unlike the department
summaries, the department summaries have an operating budget for 12
months, the capital improvement programs are for 18 months.
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Following those sections are the grant revenues, schedules which explain
the operating expenses and revenue, and then there's a glossary that closes
the Budget. .. the Program Budget.
In the budgetary process, we deal with three major funds. They are called
the General Fund, the Special Revenue Fund, and the Enterprise Fund.
The General Fund is where we have the primary operating fund for the
County. This is used to account for all County revenues. It's not
designated for any specific purpose. From the General Fund supplemental
transfers may be made to the other funds.
The second fund I would like to discuss is the Special Revenue Fund.
These are set up to account for special taxes or other revenue required by
law. These revenues are designated for a specified purpose as designated
in the HRS, the Hawaii Revised Statutes, or the County Code. In the
Special Revenue Fund, for example, we have Liquor Control, we have a
Highway Fund in which we deposit our fuel taxes, there's Wastewater
Fund from revenues from sewers and cesspools. And then we have the
Solid Waste Fund with revenues from tipping fees, for example, at the
landfill and the monthly ... the regular trash collections.
The Enterprise Fund is a, is the third and last one that we'll be dealing
with and this is the fund that is set up for the Waiehu Golf Course and the
Department of Water Supply. These funds were set up to account for
operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to a business
enterprise. The intent of the County is that the cost of providing services
to the public in these areas is financed through user charges. In the case of
the Waiehu Golf Course, as you know, there's green fees and there's also
a concession. And the Department of Water Supply there's the water fees
which are financed at fund.
Revenue estimates will be later covered by the Finance Department and
we can now go to the operations expenses. These are what we call the
department summaries. They're in the middle of your Program Budget.
Each section or each department is designated as a, as a separate section of
the Program Budget. They're numbered from Page 3 to 21 to account for
the 19 departments. These up ... these department summaries contain the
salary information, ... (change tape, start 2B) . .. the operating costs for its
program, equipment needs for Fiscal Year '08. These Program Budgets
go through a two-level review. They're first done by the Program
Managers or some are called Division Chiefs, and from there it goes to the
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department level where it's reviewed by the Department Director and
Deputy Director.
The Program Budget in budget circles is also known as the performance
based budget because budgets now are designed in order to be results
oriented. Historically, the focus previously was on expenses and not on
results. Budgets were considered line items. You would go down through
a list of expenses and determine how much of that expense should be
appropriated. The concept now is to go by programs and as I say there's
19 departments with a total of 65 programs. And so as we go through
each program we'll be looking for what is the mission of the program,
what are their objectives, and what do they need in terms of funding and
employees to meet those objectives.
The focus is on running efficient operations and getting effective results.
What we have for the future is we'll be looking at determining better
measurements. Many of the Department Heads are new. They, they, like
me, started in January and they'll be taking a fresh look at the missions,
objectives, and performance measures. The goal is to analyze the goals
and objectives for each of the programs so it will meet the needs of the
Maui community.
As you go through these department summaries and along with the Budget
Details, as I stated earlier there will be three maj or areas. We often call
them by accounts. We call them Account A's, Account B's, Account C's.
Basically, Account A is the salaries and wages, Account B is the operating
expenses which can range from anything from postage up to travel, up to
consultant fees, other services, and the last Account C are new equipment
and this will be ... could be request for vehicles under vehicle replacement
program. In the case of the Fire Department it's a request for three fire
trucks for three of their fire stations.
Following the departments summaries you'll come across the capital
improvement projects and this is also a very lengthy section of the
Program Budget to go through. But if I can give you the way it's set up,
perhaps it will be easier to go through all of this information. There's
three sections in the CIP section. The first section is the summary and
there's very good pie charts which show how the capital improvement
projects are in terms of financing, how it's funded, in terms of how it's
distributed among the nine districts, and then how it's also distributed
among the type of project it is. There'll be projects for drainage, for
example, for highways, roads, sanitation. That's the first section.
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The second section, immediately after the summary, are the projects for
this current year or current upcoming fiscal year rather, for Fiscal Year
'08. This is what we call the Fiscal Year '08 Summary and they number
several pages and immediately after that is the third section of the CIP
section which are the CIP projects by districts.
The funding sources for projects can be of nine possible types and
sometimes they're a combination of several. It can be in cash, in general
obligation bonds, lapsed bonds, park assessments, restricted water supply
funds (which are only used for source development), unrestricted water
supply funds, and it could also include intergovernmental items such as
the State Revolving Fund from the State of Hawaii. There could be
Federal funds such as the grants for highways and then there could be
other State funds.
This was a fast road map through our Program Budget. I hope that was
helpful. Again, I look forward to working with each of you to provide the
appropriate funding for each of the 65 programs which we need to fund to
carry out the need and meeting the needs of the Maui community.
We have a new staff in the budget section. I can give them a lot of credit
for getting all of these documents out. There's Helene Kau, Tehani Biga,
Mary Medeiros, and there's a seasonal help, Alison Tamashiro, who has
been doing the budgets for perhaps the past several years. These
individuals have worked extremely hard. As the Mayor said, they came
on and took this position in mid-January and by the end of February, in
about six weeks, they had to get this finished product of 650 pages plus
the ordinance and the budget details. We look forward to working with all
of you. Thank you for the opportunity to explain our Program Budget.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Pablo. Members, any questions for the
Budget Director? Member Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: No.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: No, thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Baisa.

- 40-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
March 22, 2007

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Yes, just a quick one. Mr. Pablo, thank you very
much for this. It's very helpful to those of us that are going to navigate
this totally for the first time. Is this on a CD? Is the Budget Detail on a
CD? I did ... I installed the other but I don't know.
MR. PABLO: No. Only the Program Budget is on a CD. The Budget Details
were produced solely for the Council.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Baisa. Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Hokama. Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Not at this time.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you very much. Thank you very much,
Mr. Pablo,-MR. PABLO: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --for that overview in regards to the Fiscal Year '08
Budget. At this time, Members, I'd like to introduce Mr. Kalbert Young,
our Finance Director, to give us an overview in regards to the revenues for
this County. Mr. Young.
MR. YOUNG: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Good morning, Members.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Good morning.
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MR. YOUNG: And so now it officially begins ... . (laughter) . .. I know a lot of
the talk has been as Mr. Brewbaker stated to focus on the expenditure side,
not so much on the revenue side. And as most of the Members here know,
including the new Members, you'll spend an inordinate amount of time
discussing all of the operations and expenses, and unfortunately or
fortunately, this will be the most in-depth you're going to get on the
revenue side which for the Department of Finance is the more important
side because your entire operation expenses is limited or enabled by how
much revenue we're going to bring in. And with that I've prepared a
presentation and I believe you folks have all the handouts - it looks like
this - and it will supplement that section of the budget that is listed on the
table for Budget Overview on Page 2-4 of the Budget Proposal and it will
complement that section of the Budget Proposal that's labeled the
Revenue Overview. This presentation normally takes in excess of 30
minutes but I know the Chair's desire to conclude at 12 so I will quickly
run through as a brief overview of the revenue components for all the
Members and allow for any questions in regards to the technical aspects of
the specific revenue items.
And with that, again, on Page 2-4 of the Budget Proposal, as well as in the
presentation on Slide No.2, you see all the different revenue components
at the highest scale. We have real property tax, license, permits, and other
services, transient accommodation taxes, and current services for County
operations. Then we have public service company tax, the fuel and
franchise tax, special assessments, other intergovernmental funds and
revenue, general obligation bonds, the carryover savings calculation, and
then various inter-fund transfers that occur between the funds that
Mr. Pablo outlined, all for a total of $524.9 million, approximately, and
that comprises the balanced budget amount.
The first item is the one that we had a lot of discussion this morning is on
real property tax. As you can see by the portion of the revenues, real
property tax is projected to constitute about $196 million of our $524
million revenue budget. It still remains the most sizable portion of any
revenue stream. This year's budget, Mayor Tavares has undertaken a very
bold effort in regards to real property tax and that is to systematically look
to maintain the overall collection of real property tax at a level that is very
close and consistent with the revenue tax collection in the current Fiscal
Year 2007. This has necessitated a across-the-board rate reductions and if
you look at Slides 4 and 5, you will see rate reductions for every property
classification. These rate reductions were necessitated at a level so that
each individual classification would see revenue collection at or very near
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the identical amount collected for that classification in the current fiscal
year.
For the benefit of the viewers, we are looking at improved residential rates
reducing from $5 per $1000 of value to $4.70; homeowner rate to reduce
from $2.50 to $1.85; unimproved residential from 5.86 to $5.35; apartment
classification to reduce from $5.00 to $4.55; commercial properties to
reduce from $6.00 to $5.90; industrial properties to reduce from $6.50 to
$5.70; conservation properties to reduce from $4.75 to $4.70; agricultural
properties to reduce from $4.50 to $4.15; hotel and resort to reduce from
$8.20 to $7.30; and timeshare properties to reduce from $14.00 to $12.75
per 1000. The chart on Pages 4 and 5, if you look at the three years that
are presented here, you will notice that there has been a real property tax
rate reduction in each of those years from the prior year. This represents
in my mind a significant approach on the part of the Council and the
Administration both present and former to address increasing property
values in the County without compromising the need for revenues for
County operations.
License, permits, and others represents those types of revenues for
services whereby a license or permit is issued. The most common
example would be vehicle registration, the weight tax, et cetera. It also
includes those incomes generated from County funds and the use of
County property. Revenue generated in this category is identified for use
specifically in funds where whether they be General Fund, Special Funds,
or Enterprise Funds. And the chart on Page 6 shows the breakdown for
license and permits revenue by fund. Also included in the license and
permits, other, is the amounts in the General Fund for fines and penalties
and then the amount for each of the funds for General Fund, Water Fund,
and Golf Fund for the use of money and property. In the General Fund
we're specifically talking about money under investment, a rate of return
relative to interest, as well as in the Water Fund. The Golf Fund is, as
Mr. Pablo mentioned, the use of our concession for property there.
The Transient Accommodation Tax is also projected in the revenue stream
to be consistent in the current year to the next year. This is based on
conversations with Mr. Brewbaker, as well as other economic advisers that
the Department of Finance seeks out, as well as discussions with Maui
Visitors Bureau and to some extent the Hawaii ... the Hotel Association,
and a qualitative review of economic data relative to our... the Statewide
prospects for tourism and travel to Hawaii. Based on this, we're
projecting that the transient accommodation tax revenue for the County of
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Maui should be consistent to what we are projecting as the collection for
the current fiscal year, that to be 21.9 million.
The graph on Page 9 shows the budget to actual collection of transient
accommodation tax going back to 2002. And the reason why I show this
five-year rear looking view is that transient accommodation tax, as we are
all aware, is ... has a potential to be fickle in that problems in the tourism
market can drastically affect our collections. So this is one area where we
try and be very conservative in our projection. As ... while we spend a lot
of time trying to estimate and seek expert advice on what the market will
do, it's always a prediction to come down to a projected revenue.
The Fuel and Franchise Tax. The fuel tax as you know is that tax that's
collected on every gallon of gasoline and diesel sold in the County of
Maui. We are projecting that the fuel tax will actually be at the same
estimate for Fiscal Year 2007 collection. If you look at the bar graph
that's on Page 10, you'll notice that the dark bar is the actual budget
amount and the lighter color bar is the estimate. This estimate is based on
December 31, 2006 collections year-to-date. We are projecting that the
collection for fuel tax will be less than the amount budgeted.
For Franchise Tax, this is the ... the franchise tax is paid by electric and
light utility companies in the County as a portion of their annual gross
receipts. Utility companies pay 2.5 percent of their annual gross receipts
for this tax revenue. Given the prospect of utility companies, the price of
energy increasing year over year for the last five years, we are projecting
the same for the upcoming Fiscal Year '08 and are budgeting a increase in
the area of franchise tax collection.
The Public Service Company Tax is another tax paid by public utilities in
the amount of 1.885 percent of gross income. This is paid in lieu of real
property tax on property that they use to deliver service. Revenue for. ..
revenue projections for this category are based on historical collections, as
well as an estimation of the next year's business. Again, with rising utility
costs projected in the near future we are again projecting an increase in
this tax collection to 6.7 million. The current Fiscal Year '07 is budgeted
at 5.2 million.
Charges for Current Services are for those items of services or programs,
activities that are delivered through the various funds. In the General
Fund the two different categories are General Services and Safety, which
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we are projecting to be flat and level, as well as in the area of Recreation,
which we are again projecting to be flat and level.
Highway Funds are for current services is the Public Transit Bus Fare and
I believe the numbers are actually reversed. In Fiscal Year 2007, it's
budgeted at 250,000, and in Fiscal Year 2008, it's actually budgeted at
500,000.
In terms of the Special Funds and Enterprise Funds for current services,
this is where we will discuss some of the revenue as a result of increased
rates, most notably the first one in the Solid Waste Fund for residential
trash pick-up. The amount of revenue budgeted for the current Fiscal
Year 2007 is $3,260,000. Fiscal Year '08 is projected and calculated to
increase to $4,416,000. However, this is largely due to rate increases of
... the residential trash pick-up is currently billed at $12 per month or
$144 annually. It is proposed to increase to $16 a month or $1 per week
on average for $192 annual service charge. This is based on 23,000
residential customers as of December 31, 2006.
Other Solid Waste Fund revenue is for landfill serVIces, which are
projected to increase from 12.3 million in the current fiscal year to 17.2
million in the Fiscal Year '08, largely due to again increases in rates in the
area of the tipping fees, which are currently charged at $43 per ton, which
are project. .. which are proposed to increase to $60 per ton. Bio-solid
disposal is currently billed at $43 per unit. That is proposed to increase to
$55 per unit. Similarly, green waste disposal fee is currently $7. This is
proposed to increase to 20. And the recycling fee which is $4 is proposed
to increase to $10. The Administration feels that these rate increases for
landfill services and residential home trash pick-up are necessary to more
closely align the cost to provide these services with the revenue that is
required to run them.
In terms of the Water Fund, again, rate increases in the area of the
Department of Water Supply is proposed to increase revenue from 36.3
million to just under 45 million. The rate increases for the Water Supply
is evaluated to increase the average household service bill by about $1.50
a month. However, for higher users or those businesses or organizations
that have a greater volume of water use, they will see increases larger than
this average.
In terms of the Wastewater Fund, again, wastewater sewer fee increases
are necessary to more closely align their need for revenue with their
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anticipated expenses and debt service. Revenues for wastewater and
sewer fees in Fiscal Year '07 was budgeted at 29.8 million, the rate
increases would result in a revenue increase of. .. or to 36 million in the
Fiscal Year '08. The Department estimates that the average household
will see monthly billing increases of approximately $8.40 per month as a
result of these rate increases.
The Special Assessment category are those funds collected for specific
uses or community districts. These funds were likely collected in previous
fiscal years and for varying purposes. There are select capital projects
proposed in Fiscal Year '08 that will seek to tap these Special Assessment
Funds. The revenues available for these funds were determined by the
departments administering these special assessments. So, for instance,
park assessments were tapped in Fiscal Year '07 for 1.5 million. In Fiscal
Year '08 it's projected at 1.8 million. Similarly, sewer assessments in
Fiscal Year '07 required 1.2 million from their assessments. In Fiscal
Year '08 they will be tapping 1. 3. And the Water Supply has a capital
improvement allocation, which in Fiscal Year '07 they used 9.1 million.
In Fiscal Year '08 they will be using 3.9 million for their capital projects.
General Obligation Bonds. This slide here on 19 is intended to provide
you with a kind of a very general sense of the necessities for general
obligation bonds. The County has historically and most recently used
general obligation bonds, which are a form of debt that the County will
assume, to finance big ticket, long-term, or capital projects. The County is
required to evaluate its overall amount of debt which we'll call debt load,
as well as the annual cost of that debt going forward, which is known as
debt service, as well as the relative ratios that all of these calculations of
debt and debt limit impose on the County. In Fiscal Year '07, for
example, the amount of projects that were funded by general obligation
bonds was 34.9 million. In Fiscal Year '08 we're proposing to only fund
34.75 so effectively a level debt financing from current year to the next
year through general obligation bonds.
I've listed out four of the more important ratios that underwriters,
Department of Finance, and financing organizations when they review the
County ofMaui and its debt consider such as the Annual Debt Service as a
portion of the annual operating budget. The Overall Debt Load as a
portion of the County's real property assessed values. The amount of debt
per capita and the amount of debt as a percentage of the debt limit. All of
these ratios are presented in some fashion at the. . .in the Comprehensive
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Annual Financial Report which concluded for the Fiscal Year 2006 and
was delivered to the Council earlier in January.
Intergovernmental Funds are those funds which are derived from other
agencies, primarily the State. In 2008, the sources for Intergovernmental
Funds are pretty much only through State Revolving Fund Loans for
capital improvement projects. But there are a few smaller general fund in
the Intergovernmental Funds primarily for Veteran Services and for Civil
Defense but these total less than $100,000 in total. SRF Loans for
Wastewater Funds are looking at about 16.3 million in the next fiscal year
and for the Water Fund 8 million, and these are all for capital projects.
I saved the more complicated one for last and that's the calculation of
Carryover Savings. I know there's been a lot of talk recently about the
level of Carryover Savings and this is a value that is often misunderstood.
The 2006 CAFR, the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, reflected a
unrestricted General Fund Carryover Saving in the amount of $52 million.
It's often misunderstood that that 52 million means $52 million available
to the County in the next year. That's not the case. Slide 21 illustrates the
calculation for Carryover Savings that's presented in the Fiscal Year '08
Budget.
I'll just quickly go through it for the general public. Carryover Savings is
an estimation of the amount of funds that will be remaining at the
conclusion of the current fiscal year - current fiscal year being 2007. This
category also considers those funds that are reported as Carryover Savings
via the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, the CAFR, for the
previous Fiscal Year 2006. That's the number that I just referenced - 52
million. The CAFR Carryover Savings amount is reduced by those funds
that were budgeted in the current Fiscal Year 2007 as the estimated
Carryover Savings while the budget for 2007 was being constructed. The
Carryover Savings for the upcoming Budget 2008 are also reduced by
those funds used in the mid-year supplemental budget amendments that
the Council approved to meet operational demands that identified savings
as the funding source. Carryover Savings for the FY '08 Budget also
considers a projection of revenue that will be collected in 2007 that
exceeds the level budgeted in 2007. And lastly, Carryover Savings for
Fiscal Year 2008 is reflected in the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds,
and Enterprise Funds.
They all may have a Carryover Savings amount and the last slide on Page
22 shows you an example for the Carryover Savings for the General Fund
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as an example to more clearly illustrate this explanation. The Unrestricted
Fund Balance as reported in the CAFR was 52.7 million. This amount has
to be reduced by the amount of Budget Amendments that were approved
in Fiscal Year '07 and as of December 31, 2006 there was 700,000
budgeted or as supplemental budget amendments. Furthermore, that 52.7
million is further reduced by those Carryover Savings identified in the
Fiscal Year '07 Budget which was 23.7 million. Then we can add back
the estimated excess revenue that the Finance Department is projecting for
the remainder of Fiscal Year '07, which is 4.8 million and an estimated
operational savings from the different programs of 2.2 million which are
projecting. This amount also includes lapsed CIP Funds. That brings us
to the total of 35.6 million which is the Carryover Savings amount that is
reflected in the Fiscal Year '08 Budget.
With that, Mr. Chair, concludes my general and overview presentation of
the County's revenues. I'm available for any specific or technical
questions on any individual revenue components.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Young. Members, any questions and
we'll start with Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I will defer to the Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Not at this time.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Mr. Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Chair. Mr. Young, what did you
say is our fuel tax rate or percentage because I don't see it on the slide?
MR. YOUNG: The fuel tax is on Page 10 of the slides and I believe the current
fuel tax is 14 cents per gallon for gasoline.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Fourteen cents per gallon.
follow-up question, Mr. Chair?

- 48 -

And just a

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
March 22, 2007

CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I notice on Page 15, the green waste and
recycling fees, . . . (change tape, start 3A). . . when did that change? I
know we used to allow green waste to go to the landfills free as an
encouragement for them to take it to the landfill to be composted. So they
pay a fee now?
MR. YOUNG: Yes. I believe in .. .if recollection serves me, I believe in Fiscal
Year 2005 I believe it was increased from four to seven and now it's being
proposed to increase from seven to twenty. I'm not certain. That's just to
my recollection. I would have to confirm with the department.
COUNCILMEMBERMEDEIROS: Thank you, Mr. Young. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Medeiros. Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. Kalbert, thanks very much for your
presentation. With regard to the transient accommodations tax because we
have one hotel that was leveled because we have another one in West
Maui that's being converted to condominium, we have a third one that's
also at the Ritz Carlton that will be out of service for a six-month period,
have those revenue losses been taken into consideration when we're
looking at the transient accommodations tax projections?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Mr. Young.
MR. YOUNG: Ms. Johnson, yes, there is projected to be a reduction in the
number of hotel rooms in Maui County and that will affect our overall
contribution to the transient accommodations tax. However, as the slide
points out and this is the actual calculation, is that the transient
accommodations tax is collected Statewide from all hotel rooms or all
visitor room accommodations at a level of 7.25 percent. There's a
statutory calculation that determines how much is derived to each of the
counties. Out of the ... all of the money that's collected from Transient
Accommodations Tax, approximately 42 percent of it is retained by the
State as administrative cost, and then another 30 something percent is
specifically earmarked for the convention center and convention bureau
services, and the remainder is distributed among the counties.
Effectively what the calculation comes out is that the County ends up
getting about 10.8 percent of all TAT that's collected. The County of
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Maui will get just a shade under 11 percent of that. So the loss of hotel
rooms on Maui doesn't really affect the overall hotel inventory to a very
large degree because we're looking at it as inventory throughout the entire
State. The more important statistic that we look at was the comments of
economists like Mr. Brewbaker, like Mr. Leroy Laney, in terms of what is
the overall prospect for the visitor plant and that is on the Statewide level
and it's primarily in the area of Honolulu because Honolulu has the
majority of the hotel rooms and any effect on the tourist accommodations
there would more drastically affect our TAT collection.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Having heard what you commented,
because I know that there was an option I guess to basically opt out of this
TAT pool, I believe City and County of Honolulu actually went to the tax
assessment, and doesn't that impact though the amount of revenue that
would be distributed amongst all the counties?
MR. YOUNG: Yes, Ms. Johnson. I think you are referring to the opportunity
that the City and County had that if they increased .. .if they were willing
to increase the GE Tax by one-half percent they would then have to opt
out of the tran ... their collection of transient accommodations tax. We
had hoped that that would be the case in terms of our calculations for
transient accommodations tax, but in discussing this with the Maui
Visitors Bureau, the legislation was apparently amended or was not passed
where the City and County had to opt out. So this calculation is on the
understanding that the City still gets a share ... gets its share of transient
accommodations taxes. So in other words the overall calculation has not
changed.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
MR. YOUNG: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON : Very disappointing,-MR. YOUNG: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --but nevertheless, reality. Anyway, thanks
very much for at least giving us some indication that those components
have been considered on the TAT side.
MR. YOUNG: Yes, certainly.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Ms. Johnson. That would have been real
nice for Maui.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Yes.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you, Mr. Young. Very educational
presentation. Just a question on Page lOin regards to Fuel Tax, can you
give me an idea of why you think that is lower than it was budgeted? I
realize fuel costs have gone up but we tend to still use it anyway.
MR. YOUNG: I'm not certain why the revenue collection is less than budgeted.
You know, just looking at this graph, in 2005 and 2006 where you see the
dark bars which is budget. .. which is the amount budgeted and the lighter
colored bar which is the amount of actual, you can see that in those years
we also collected less than we had budgeted. And while we've tried to
migrate downward the budget estimate to be more closer reflective of
actual so that we don't run into a shortfall situation, we haven't reduced it
year over year. We haven't reduced it to levels where the actual ends up
being the case. We ... for Fiscal Year '07 the one change has been that the
tax is less by two cents and every cent reduction on the gas tax has been
about in the neighborhood of 780, $800,000 in terms of revenue coming
into the Highway Fund. So a two cent reduction we had anticipated that it
would result in about a $1.5 million decrease. Well, if you look at the
budget amount for revenue projection, we didn't reduce it by 1.5 million.
So when you reduce the tax, either we are anticipating that that tax
reduction is going to result in greater consumption to make up the
difference, or we have to reduce back the revenue draw and for whatever
reasons during the budgetary process that reduction wasn't sufficient
enough to meet what we're actually seeing.
Some other issues is that in the way that the tax is actually contributed to
the County because this is a ... this is actually collected by the State and
the State then does their calculation and forwards to the County what, you
know, what it calculates as the County's calculation or collection. And in
this one there could be anomalies such as when, when we looked at the
December 31 8t estimate to derive this, that either the State payment was
late or in process. So that might also be the case. But be that as it may,
looking back at the historical numbers is the reason why we are saying
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that the estimate for the fuel tax collection should kind of be reigned back
a little bit to maybe make it more consistent with actual.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Good. Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Member Baisa. Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. Thank you, Director
Young, for this presentation. It's very nice to see a summary of all this.
However, there's one figure I'm interested in hearing about that's not in
here, and that is what your estimated assessed valuations are, and if you
could give me a comparison-MR. YOUNG: I did ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --to last year.
MR. YOUNG: I did produce a handout that's not included in the presentation.
It's this .. .it's actually a worksheet, a single-page worksheet, that has the
assessed valuation that we used to calculate the revenues for Real Property
Tax. And what you must understand why this is only .. .it's labeled as
estimated, it's only a worksheet, because the real property tax assessed
valuations are not certified yet. They're not certified to the Council until
around mid-April. Furthermore, the budget is constructed at the .. .in the
Mayor's Office very far in advance of any of the certification work been
going. So this is purely a snapshot.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right.
MR. YOUNG: So I hope you ... okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah. I realize that.
MR. YOUNG: Okay. So as of February 28, 2007, that was the last snapshot that
I was able to get in time for the Budget. We are looking at assessed
valuations in the neighborhood of 40.6 billion for all property classes and
it's off of this assessed valuation that we are calculating the estimated or
the proposed tax rate to derive the revenue projection. And what I'm
showing here on this worksheet is I'm looking at the certified revenue for
Fiscal Year '07 and I'll also mention that the certified revenue for Fiscal
Year '07, it's the column in the middle of the page, does not match the
budgeted real property tax amount for Fiscal Year '07. And that's because
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there are modifications to certifications that occur during the year relative
to say, appeals, because the amount that is for the valuation of property
includes a projected amount for appeals. So if appeals are won or lost,
that ultimately affects the certified value. So that's why it happens to be
that the FY '07 certified revenue is actually slightly higher than the FY
'07 budgeted amount. It's higher by about a million.
The goal here was to set rates for each individual category so that the
revenue from that category will be close to an approximation as what is
collected under certified revenue for FY '07. And that's what we've tried
to done here ... tried to do here which is pretty close. I would point out
though that because the way certification works, the Real Property Tax
Division is currently still working towards certification and updating the
system of all the properties, the valuations, as of December 31, 2006. So
the valuation projection, the first column, would undoubtedly change by
the time Council received the certification in April and most likely it will
go up. There is a possibility that whatever it is it could go down but the
extreme likelihood is that Council will end up seeing valuation higher than
this 40.676 billion ... billion, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you for that, Director Young. What
I'm trying to find ... the 40.6 billion assessed valuation that was as of
February 28, not as of December 31 S\ '06, right?
MR. YOUNG: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So what I'm trying to find is a comparison
to what this, this estimated assessed valuation is for '08 to what the
certified assessed valuation was for '07.
MR. YOUNG: Yes. The ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I want to see how the assessed valuation has
increased.
MR. YOUNG: The certified assessed valuation is listed in the FY '07 Budget as
43.057 billion.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So you're estimating less assessed value in
property this year than was certified last year?

- 53 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
March 22, 2007

MR. YOUNG: Again, on this worksheet, yes, on this worksheet because of the
certified rolls are still being calculated, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: That is odd because are you saying that. ..
MR. YOUNG: Wait. I'm sorry I stand corrected. I'm looking at the wrong line.
I'm sorry. It's actually 34.744 billion.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, that's a relief. ... (chuckles) . ..
MR. YOUNG: Yeah. I'm sorry. I, I. .. but again, my statement about the values
being calculated on the certified rolls is still ongoing.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah, yeah.
MR. YOUNG: That's still true.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: We understand that. But I mean you had to
have some estimate in order to calculate your new tax rates.
MR. YOUNG: Right, right. Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So that's what I'm trying to get at - what
you used for that is 40.6 billion?
MR. YOUNG: Forty point six seven six billion, yes. And in ... again, it's still ...
in Page 2 of the Budget Ordinance on the Appendix B for Fiscal Year '07
it's 34.744 billion.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you. And then do you have any way
of knowing how much of that is. . .reflects new properties on the, on the
tax rolls that weren't currently there previously in last year's assessed
valuation?
MR. YOUNG: Not, not, not specifically and thoroughly, but if you look at this
again on this worksheet, the last three columns shows the property count
for each of the categories and there's, you know, there's movement in
between, yeah.
Some people went from homeowners to improved
residential and improved residential people went to homeowners so there's
always a change. But the net. .. the net of all these transactions is 820.
That's the count change. So there's ...
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I'm trying to find out how much in assessed
valuation our tax rolls have been increased by new properties and, and that
would give me an idea of by deducting that out, that would given me an
idea of what the percent increase is in assessed valuation across-the-board
for all previously, previously existing properties.
MR. YOUNG:
Yes.
I understand your question but I don't have that
information. I don't have that. . .I couldn't derive that information from
the data that I have in front of me and that type of analysis is quite
comprehensive actually to do on system. Yeah, because we would ... what
you're asking is all the new property that were previously either
undeveloped or taxed at a different classification from Fiscal Year '07 what is that - and we would have to do an assessment if, are you saying,
you know, are you .. .I think what you're asking is like for new residential
housing, for example, right? That maybe was not in service-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right.
MR. YOUNG: --in Fiscal Year '07.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right.
MR. YOUNG: Well, it was still taxed at something.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right.
MR. YOUNG: Right. So that type of valuation ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: But this is an important decision for us, you
know, as far as growth and so if there's some way you could find that
figure for us that would be very helpful.
MR. YOUNG: I can take a look at what it would take for the Real Property Tax
Division to actually do that type of analysis and get back to you whether
or not. ..
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I mean, you know, they have to ... they have
to input the increase when the property changes zoning or is developed in
some way. Vacant land has now got a building on it and it sold for 1.2
million. That transaction somehow you folks are entering it. .. entering it
into your database. So it seems to me there should be in this day and age
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of computers you should be able to click something and come up with all
the new entries. Is that, is that unrealistic of me?
MR. YOUNG: It would .. .if the question was un ... undeveloped property that is
now developed, right? If that's the question, then you know, it limits it so
that anything that was previously unimproved property and now in '08 it's
going to be improved, that is actually very simple. Well, more simple, I
guess. But what you have to understand is that is a very broad question
and I'm not sure that if there's a specific type of property that you're
asking for if that would ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: No. I'm just looking at overall-MR. YOUNG: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --total figures. What I'm trying to get to
you, Director Young, is how much an increase in this assessed valuation is
due to increase in existing assessed valuation of long existing properties?
How much from last year to this year, overall in the County, are we
looking at an increase in assessed valuation? And then in order to
determine that you would have to from these baseline figures or these
balances you'd have to take out anything that was new that wasn't
preexisting, you know, say, well, preexisting. And that doesn't mean that
the property didn't exist and you didn't have a tax rate on it or an assessed
value on it. I just mean anything that was previously unimproved, now
it's improved, the property sold, and, and this is new revenues that we're
seeing generated this year on our tax rolls that will be generated from now
on. And that, that's the differentiation I'm looking for in assessed
valuation. If there's a way you can come up with that for us, I'd
appreciate it.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Mr. Young.
MR. YOUNG: I will take ... certainly take a look at what you're asking for and
see if we can do analysis. I. ..
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, you know, the reason I bring this up
we're always told by people that, developers particularly, that you know,
if we approve this project we're bringing all this new tax revenue into the
County. And if that's the basis for decision-making, let's see what it is.
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MR. YOUNG: I certainly think your request is a fair one. All I'm saying is that
if that type of analysis can occur, I would hope that we would have the
ability to get it done to you quickly and I suspect that. . .I suspect a level
of complexity in that question that my staff may not be able to get it to you
quickly. And when I say quickly, I want it to you, you know, for your
consideration of the Budget. I, I. .. there are certain .. .if you're only
looking at properties that were previously undeveloped and now they are
developed, if they're moving between classes, that's a very simple
prospect. But if you're talking about properties that are currently
commercial, for instance, but they improved them in some way and the
value increased as a result of that improvement, we're talking about staff
having to go through and ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: No, no. I'm not talking about that. That's
not really that important in the overall scheme because if it' s a commercial
property that has been in long existence and they went in and they
upgraded it, then I would think that's a fair increase in assessed valuation.
Not so much attributable to .. .I mean that's the way all properties get their
valuation increased. If there's some improvement to their property or to a
neighbor's property that causes their property to have the valuation
increased so I'm not so concerned about that. That's a category that I
don't think we need to detail out. The category I'm interested in is
unimproved property that's now improved and has boosted our tax rolls.
And, and, you know, I mean that we've got what? Seven ... approximately
$7 billion increase in assessed valuation in real property in the County in
one year. So I'd like to know of that increase, how much is attributable to
increase in assessed valuation for long existing properties like anybody on
this Council who's had a home for however many years and any of our
taxpayers as opposed to brand new property that's, that's been
unimproved and is now improved and on our tax rolls. Because we look
all over this County at brand new buildings or condos and apartments and
single-family homes, most of which are very high end, and I'd like to
know how much of all that development has brought revenue into our
County. What that. .. what that reflects as opposed to just an increase in
valuation for everything that existed prior to those new properties. Is that
something you could do?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Ms. Anderson, can I add my comments here? Maybe
it's-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I mean I, Chair, I don't think it's that hard
of a question.
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: --a, yeah, maybe it's an increase in valuation for new
tax map keys, you know, from unimproved to now it's, you know, you
have a building or development on them. Is that the question that you
trying to put through?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, I mean I don't think it's even new tax
map keys, Chair, because look at all the property in Wailea. They've had
existing tax map keys for 20-something years and have been unimproved
and now all of sudden they're all improved.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: It's improved, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And I want to know what kind of revenue
that, that is bringing in in this one fiscal year. I think it's not that difficult
a question.
MR. YOUNG: Right.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So we'll forward something to Mr. Young in regards to
your question for some feedback or some information from the Finance
Director.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I think I know where you're getting at. Member Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much. Mr. Young, is
the Department aware of the number of parcels or properties that is still
pending the identification of a TMK?
MR. YOUNG: We do know that there's a fair amount of them. I couldn't give
you the exact amount right now, Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. And what is the reason for this because
nobody has the time, or the State doesn't have the time, or somebody
doesn't have the time to actually do it, work on it, and is there some kind
of a ballpark that you can give us in terms of what we could possibly be
looking at?
MR. YOUNG: The reason for the backlog in assigning TMKs if they, you know,
for whatever reasons is due to the inherent lengthy process that's involved
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in conveying the transferring property. We get our information from State
Bureau of Conveyances. They get their information, you know, from at
the transaction time in escrow. There's just a, you know, there's a
duration there inherently. When it comes to the County of Maui, that
duration could be anywhere from two weeks to two months, frankly,
depending on the complexity of the nature of the transfer that may again
add time.
The Real Property Tax Division is also understaffed in this category
because for a number of years there's been positions in this particular
section of the Real Property Tax Division that has had chronic vacancies,
and these vacancies have been there for various reasons. Again, the skill
sets for that type of personnel don't exist on Maui. They don't adequate
candidate pool. The Department has taken on different strategies to try
and fill these positions. They've met with varying levels of success
frankly. That adds to the time.
We've also several years ago under the most recent Finance Director
begin ... began a contract to out source the ability to do this to the City and
County of Honolulu and they've been able to help us speed up the process,
catch up the backlog. My understanding from the Division is that the
backlog for prior to 2006 has been completely addressed with some few
stragglers for the most complex properties and they're already well into
2006. I couldn't tell you where in 2006. I believe it's after June. So
we're looking at a backlog of, you know, somewhere in the neighbor of
six to eight months on the County side.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. Thank you. Last thing, Mr. Young, your,
your Carryover Savings, do we have or are you going to provide us with a
breakdown of the savings marks per department?
MR. YOUNG: The savings marks for. . .that comprise the 52.7 million that's
reported in the CAFR, that one. . .the way the CAFR is structured it
doesn't give you the breakdown by individual departments. We ... the
Finance Department does rely on the Finance Director's Quarterly that
was published for the ... for that same period. So the June 30, 2006
Finance Director's Quarterly does give the unaudited year-end snapshot of
what we looked at as the balances for savings on the operational side.
And it's very close and representative for each of the departments and the
components of the CAFR.
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. Well, my only reason for asking,
Mr. Young, is when I took a look at, you know, this rather large figure,
your first question that would come to mind was were the departments
over-budgeted and if they weren't over-budgeted, what weren't they able
to complete? So I was hoping to get a breakdown so we can actually see
the status of each department in terms of what was identified earlier as
efficiency and effectiveness in order for us to have a better understanding
of how these funds were being expended and to see whether or not they
had in fact met the targets and objectives that was described to us earlier.
MR. YOUNG: Yes, Mr. Mateo. I totally understand what you're asking and I
would say that that value is in the Finance Director's Quarterly for the
period ending June 30, 2006.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Mateo. Members, we do have a few
minutes left ...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chairman, I do have one question, if I
may and it's just come up.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Ms. Anderson had mentioned earlier that
the reduction in available rooms due to closures and renovation, et cetera,
but I point out in your estimation of revenues for the value and revenues
for timeshare, and I'm not talking about what we're asking you to do. I'm
talking the actual valuation. Does this take into consideration all that
development? There's like 2,600 rooms that will come on line, some by
latter part of this year, many beginning of next year along Airport Beach.
We have all that development. Does this $1,000,672,000 take that into
consideration?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Mr. Young.
MR. YOUNG: Mr. Victorino, I believe Ms. Johnson's question was related to
the ... a number of available rooms. It sounds like, if I'm understanding
you correctly, your question is within the timeshare category if these
rooms that will come on line are factored into ...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That figure there.
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MR. YOUNG: No. Because this ... these values here for property valuations are
up to December 31, 2006. Certification... when the Council receives
certification in mid-April, the certification represents all properties valued
at December 31, 2006. So the property that you're mentioning, whatever
state of condition or use, utility, value, that property is in on December 31,
2006. That will be the amount that will be calculated in here. If this
property comes on line during 2007, that value will be adjusted and
reflected in the certification for, you know, next year.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: The '08, '09 Budget.
MR. YOUNG: Correct, correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO:
December 31, 2006?

So, so these figures here are based on

MR. YOUNG: Yes. And that is what Maui County Code and the part of the
ordinance related to certification specifically requires that the properties
be valued end of the calendar year preceding the next fiscal year.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So that kind of answers the question
Ms. Anderson was bringing up that anything that comes on line after
December 31, 2006 is not based inside these estimates? ... (change tape,
start 3B) . ..
MR. YOUNG: Yes, to that extent. If it comes online after December 31, 2006, it
won't be in here but from, you know, my assumption is that Ms. Anderson
is asking for those items that changed from one certification year to the
next and so that would be properties that were changed from 2005 to 2006.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. I just wanted to get that c1ear-MR. YOUNG: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --because the changes do happen very
rapidly around our town. Thanks.
MR. YOUNG: Yes. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Victorino. Members, looking at the
time for preparation for tomorrow's meeting, the Chair would like to go
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over the format we will use going forward. For the next couple of weeks
we will have each department come before the Council to review their
budgets, highlight their requests, and major changes to their budgets. I
also have extended an opportunity for each department to provide us with
an overview of their budget prior to the Q & A portion of the review.
Following the overview I'll direct your attentions to the various programs
of the department, meaning that we'll go from A. We'll take all the
questions for A account, then to B. Take all the questions for B account
and C, take all those questions.
For the CIP, we'll have another day on the capital improvement projects.
And then again, we'll follow the same format - questions by each Member
with a follow-up question and if there's other questions and if time is
available, then we will ask more questions to the department. Also, the
Chair will be receive. . .if we do have other questions that we cannot
address at the meeting, if you put it in writing, we'll have the department
answer those questions that you do have.
Members, again, tonight we'll be at the Helene Hall in Hana, this evening
at 6:00 p.m. I know some of you will be driving in. Have a safe trip
going in and coming out. And Members that are flying, we need to be at
the airport ... Lance? Okay. While Lance is looking at what time we need
to meet at the airport, again, Members, you know, this is the start of the
2008 Budget. Hopefully, we can complete this Budget by May 31 8t as
indicated in the Charter. So Members ... you have the information, Lance?
MR. TAGUCHI: Chair Pontanilla, the Charter is confirmed to depart at 3:30 p.m.
from Kahului.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Two-thirty?
MR. TAGUCHI: Three-thirty.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Three-thirty. So Members, if you can be there at least
an hour ahead of time so that, you know, we'll be there to catch the plane.
So again, thank you very much, Members.

ACTION:

DEFER pending further discussion.

CHAIR PONT ANILLA: So at this time, the Chair would like to adjourn this
meeting. . .. (gavel) . ..
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ADJOURN:

11:58 a.m.

APPROVED:
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